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File No..39..9.TS.99. ........................................m.......m....

[X] This SUBPOENA/SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM TO PERSON UNDER FOREIGN SUBPOENA is being served by a private

process server who must provide proof of service in accordance with Va. Code § 8.01-325.

TO the person mthorized to serve this process: Upon execution, the return of this process shall be made to the

Clerk of Court.

NAME: ....... .CD O CG Q .. . ZDCE......... . .... . . . .. ._..........................

ADDRESS: ....... . ............ . .Û....... . ...,..... ............ ......................................

........m......................... N11225
[ ] PERSONAL SERVICE

Being unable to make personal service, a copy was delivered in the following manner:

[ ] Delivered to family member (not temporary sojourñer or guest) age 16 or older at usual place of abode of

party named above after giving information of its purport. List name, age of recipient, and relatioñ of

recipient to party named above:

..........±•...................e...........e..........e........................±±•..................e...m....................................................-.........-................................................••........m..................................•......................e....................

[ ] Posted on front door or such other door as appears to be the main entrance of usual place of abode, address

listed above. (Other authorized recipient not found.1

[ ] not found ..................................................................................................., Sheriff

........m............................... by ..........................................................m........................................................., Deputy Sheriff
DATE

JOHN T. FREY, CLERK

FAIRFAX COUNTY CiRCUIT COURT

4110 CHAIN BREDGE ROAD

FAIRFAX, V1RGINIA 22030

FORMCC-1439(MASTER,PAGETHREEOFTHREE)07/09
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SUBPOENA/SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM File No. ..2 -0002¶11

TO PERSON UNDER FOREIGN SUBPOENA
Commoilwealtli of Virginia VA CODE §§ 8.01-412.8--8.01-412.15; Rule 4:9

.. ..ÊŸ.E.N ................................................................................................ Circuit Couit

4110 Chain Bridge Road, 3rd Floor, Fairfax, VA 22030

TO THE PERSON AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO SERVE THIS PROCESS:

You are commanded to summon

Benjamin Wizner o.............. ................................................................................................................................................

326 Eastern Parkway, Apt. 1A

Brooklyn NY 11225. . ...................................................................................................................................................... ............................................................. .. .. . ....

TO THE PERSON SUMMONED: You are commended to

[×] attend and give testimony at a deposition

[ ] produce the books, documents, records, electroñically stored informatics, and tangible things designated and

described below

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

at Brown Rudnick LLP, 7 Times Square, New York, NY 10036......................... at ............... arch 202 at 30 a m
LOCATION DATEANDTIME

and to permit inspection and copyiñg by the reqüesting party or someone acting in his or her behalf of the

designated items in your possession, custody or control

[ ] permit inspection of the premises

at the following location

.......................................................................................................................... . . ...................................................................................................................

On ......................................................................................................
DATEANDTIME

This subpoena is issued upon the request of the party named below

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II
............................................................................................................ . . .....................................................................................................

c/o Benjamin G. Chew, Brown Rudnick LLP, 601 13th Street NW, Suite 600
...................................................................................................................... . . .. . . ..............................................................................................................

Washington D.C. 20005 202-536-1785

FORMCC-1439(MASTER,PAGEONEOFTHREE)07/09
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File No. ..201 -0002911

The rTesting party has submined to this Clerk's Office the foreign subpoêña, copy attached, the terms of which are

incorporated herein, and the written statement required by Virginia Code § 8.01-412.10.

The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all counsel of record in the proceeding to which the subpoena relates

and of parties not represented by counsel are provided [ ] below [×] on attached list.

P 202 JOHN T. FREY, CLIERK
...................... .... .. .. . ... .. . . ............;......

by . )
DEPUTYCLERK

Benjamin G. Chew 29113 VA

601 13th Street NW, Suite 600 202-536-1785.............................................. ... .. . ............................................... ................................ .... .. ..... . ................................

Washington, D.C. 20005 202-536-1701.............................................. . . . . . . . ............................................... .................................. . . . .. .................................

..................................................... ....................................................... .................. . . . ............................................. . . . . . ..........

..............................

RETURN OF SERVICE (see page three of this form)

A COpy TESTE:

JOHNT.FREY, CLERK

BY: Cha

Date:
Original retairied the office of

FORMCC4439(MASTER,PAGETWOOFTHREE)07/09
the Clerk of the Circuit Court of

Fairfax County, Virginia
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CL-2019-0002911

The narnes, addresses and tekph::: numbers of all counsel of record in the -eceeding to which
the subpoena relates and of parties not represented by counsel are:

Benjamin G. Chew (VSB No. 291 13)
Andrew C. Crawford (VSB No. 89093)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP
601 Thirteenth Street, N.W., Suite 600

Washington, D.C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 536 1700
Facsimile: (202) 536-1701

Camille M. Vasquez (pro hac vice)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP
2211 M1 h ison Drive
Seventh Floor .
Irvine, CA92612
Telephone: (949) 752-7100
Facsimilei (949) 252-1514

Counsel for Plaint f John C. Depp, II
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CL-2019-0002911

EBt" hib.$½&m (V85 hy 84796)

Î0 111 SB176d959)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S.lefferson Street, suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, VA 24011

Telephone: (540) 983-7540
brottenborn@woodarogers.com

jtreece@woodsrogersAom

Elaine Charlson Bredehoft (VSB No. 23766)

Carla D. urown (VSB No. 4480s)
Adam S Nadelhaft (VSB No. 91717)

DAvid E.Nurphy (VSB No. 90938)

Charlson Bredehoft Cohen & Brown, P.C.

11260 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 201

Reston, VA 20190

Telephone: (703) 318-6800

Facsimile: (703) 318-6808

ebredehoft@cbcblaw.com
obrown@cbchlaw.com
anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com
dmurphy@cbcb1aw.com

Counsel fbr Defenda;;: AmberLauraHeard
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF NEW YORK

John C. Depp, II, ORIGINIATING STATE:

THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

Plaintiff,

ORIGINATING COURT:

v. CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY

Amber Laura Heard, ORIGINATING CASE NUMBER:
Case No. CL-2019-02911

Defendant.

SUBPOENA AD TESTIFICANDUM AND
DUCES TECUM PURSUANT TO CPLR
3119

To: Benjamin Wizner, 326 Eastern Parkway, Apt. #1A, Brooklyn, NY 11225

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED, pursuant to Section 3119 ofthe New York Civil

Practice Law and Rules ("CPLR"), all business and excuses being laid aside, to appear and

attend, before a duly commissioned notary public of the State of New York, or some other

person duly qualified under the laws of the State of New York to adiliiiiister oaths, at the law

offices of Brown Rudnick LLP, 7 Times Square, New York, New York 10036, on March 8,

2021, at 9:30 a.m. ET, and at recessed or adjourned date, to give testimony. This deposition will

be recorded by steñographic means Plaintiff reserves the right to record the testimony by audio

or visual means.

YOU ARE FURTHER COMMANDED, pursuant to Section 3119 of the CPLR, all

business and excused being laid aside, to produce, or make available for copying, on or before

March 1, 2021, at the offices of Brown Rudnick LLP, 7 Times Square, New York, New York,

10036, or by e-mail to Jessica N. Meyers (jmeyers@brownrudnick.com), true and correct copies

of all documents requested in Exhibit A hereto, that are in your possession, custody, or control,
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which documents are material and relevant to the resolution of the issues in the above-captioned

matter, which is now pending in the Circuit Court of the Commonwealth of Virginia, Fairfax

County. If you wish to make your production in person, please call Jessica Meyers at (212) 209-

4938 at least 72 hours in advance to make arrangements.

The discovery herein sought and required is in connection with the claims and defenses in

the above-captioned action. A copy of the Complaint in this action is attached hereto as Exhibit

B.

FAILURE TO COMPLY with this SUBPOENA is punishable as a contempt of Court

and shall make you liable to the person on whose behalf this subpoena was issued for a penalty

not to exceed one liüñdrcd and fifty dollars and all damages sustained by reason of your failure

to comply.

COUNSEL OF RECORD FOR ALL PARTIES

Benjamin G. Chew, Esq. (VSB 29113) Counsel for John C. Depp, II

Andrew Crawford (VSB No. 89093)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, NW
Washington, DC 20005

(202) 536-1700

behew@brownrudnick.com

acrawford@brownrudnick.com

Camille M. Vasquez Counsel for John C. Depp, II

BROWN RUDNICK LLP

2211 Michelson Drive

Irvine, CA 92612

(949) 752-7100

evasquez@brownrudnick.com

Elaine Charlson Bredehoft (VSB #23766) Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

Carla D. Brown (VSB #44803)
Adam S. Nadelhaft (VSB #91717)
David E. Murphy (VSB #90938)
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CHARLSON BREDEHOFT COHEN &
BROWN, P.C.

11260 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 201

Reston, VA 20190

(703) 318-6800

ebredehoft@cbcblaw.com

cbrown@cbcblaw.com

anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com

dmurphy@cbcblaw.com

J. Benjamin Rottenborn (VBS #84796) Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

Joshua R. Treece (VSB #79149)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, Virginia 24011

(540) 983-7540

brottenborn@woodsrogers.com

jtreece@woodsrogers.com

Dated: February _, 2021

New York, New York

BROWN RUDNICK LLP

By: /s/ Jessica N. Meyers

Jessica N. Meyers

7 Times Square

New York, New York 10036

(212) 209-4938

jmeyers@brownrudnick.com

Counsel for John C. Depp, H
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EXHIBIT B
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FILED
Civil INTAKE

V I R G I N I A:

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUIWIBMAR-I PM12:t 8

JOHN T. FREY

John C. Depp, H, )

Plaintifr, ) 19 01911
v. ) Civil Acti n 0.

Ashber Laura Heard, )

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II, a/k/a Johnny Depp, in support of his Cêspis!±against

Datend=‡ Amber Laura Heard hereby states the following:

1. This defé±tier. action arises from an op-ed publishce in the Washington Post by

actress Amber Heard ("Ms. Heard"). In the op-ed, Ms. Heard purparted to write from the

perspective of "a public figure representing
f-- abuse" and claimed that she "felt the full

force of our culture's wrath for women who speak out" when she "spoke up against sexual

violence."

2. Although she never identified him by name, the op-ed plainly was about (and

other media consist=dy cherecterized it as being about) Ms. Heard's purported victimizenon

after she publicly secused her former husbaiid, Johnny Depp ("Mr. Depp"), of domestle abuse in

2016, when she appeared in court with an apparently ha**~ad face and obtained a :cmparary

restraining order against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016. The op-ed depended on the central premise

that Ms. Heard was a domestic abuse victim and that Mr. Depp perpetrated domestic vicicace

against her,
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3. The op-ed's clear implication that Mr. Depp is a domestic abuser is categorically

and dc±:n±ably false. Mr. Depp never abused Ms. Heard. Ner allegaticña against him were

false when they were made in 2016. They were part of an elabeate hoax to generate positive

publicity for Ms. Heard and advance her career. Ms; IIeard's false allegations against Mr Depp

have been ccñclusively refuted by two separate responding police officers,-a litany of neutral

third-party =itnesses, and 87 newly obtained saricijiance camera videos. With a prior arrest for

violent dp-tastic abuse and having nonfessed under oath to a series of Wolent attacks on Mr.

Depp, Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic abuse; she is a perpetrator. Ms. Heard violently

abused Mr Depp, just as she was caught and arrested for vic!cntly abusing her former domestic

partner.

lus. Heard's implicatica in her op-ed that Mr. Depp is a damestic abuser is not

only demeneably false, it is defamater y per se. Ms. Heard falsely imphed that Mr. Depp was

guilty of domestle vicicace, which is a crime iniciviñg moral tumitade. Moreover, Ms. Heard's

false 'mpliéstion prejudiced Mr. Depp· in his career as a film actor and lücalcUlably (and

immediately) damaged his reputation as a public figure.

5. Unsurprisingly, Mr. Depp's reputation and career were devastated when Ms.

Heard first accused him of domestic vicicace on May 27, 2016. Ms. Heard's hoax a"casticñs

were timed to =*=W with the day that Mr. Depp's film, Alice Through the Looking Glass, was

released in theatres. Her op-ed, with its false implication that she was a victim of domestic

viciêñce at the hands of Mr. Depp, brought new damage to Mr. Depp's is;:=:= and career.

Mr. Depp lost movie roles and faced public scorn. Ms. Heard, an actress herself, knew precisely
!

the effect that her op-ed would have on Mr. Depp. And indeed, j.ust four days after Ms. Heard's

op-ed was first published on December 18, 2018, Disney announced on December 22, 2018 that

2
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it was dspping Mr. Depp from his leading role as Captain Jack Sparrow-a role that he

created-in the mu!ti bi!!ion dallar-eaming Pirates of the Caribbean frsachise.

6. Ms. IIcard published her op-ed with actual malice. She knew that Mr. Depp did

not abuse her and that the domestic abuse allegations that she mado against him in 2016 were

false. She knew that the testimony and phetagraphic "evidence" that she prezen*ed to the court

and the suppoMing sworn testimony provided by her two friends were false and perjurious. Ms.

Heard knew that the truth was that she violently abused Mr. Depp-just as she violently abused

her prior démestic partner, which led to her arrest and booking for domestic violence, as well as

a night in jail and a mug shot. Ms. Heard revived her false al'egations against Mr. Depp in the

op-ed to ganerate positivë pablicity for herself and to premete her new movie Aquaman, which

premiered across the United States and in Virginia only three days after the op-ed was first

published.

7. Mr. Depp brings this defe etion action to clear his name. By this civil lawsuit,

Mr. Depp seeks to restore his reputation and edeblish Ms. Heard's legal liability for cont!::!:;;

her campaign to push a false ñârrative that he ccr±ted domestic violence against her. Mr.

Depp seeks an award of compensatery damages for the reputatióñal harm that he suffered as a

result of Ms. Heard's op-ed, with its false and defamatory impliestiêñ that Mr. Depp was a

domestic abuser. Further, given the willftis;as and iná!iciousness that Ms. Heard der::±±d

when she kee=/iügly pthli±ed the op-ed with the false inrp!icatics that Mr. Depp viciently

abused her, Mr. Depp also seeks an award of püñitive damages.

8. Plaintiff John C. Depp is an individual and a resident of the State of Califõrñia.

For decades, he has been one of the most pssisc:: actors in Hüilywóûd. Mr. Depp was married

3
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to Ms. Heard for approximately 15 months between February 1, 2015 and May 23, 2016. They

had no children together. Mr. Depp was the target of Ms. Heard's false and
a='

y op-ed in

the Washington Post.

9. Defeddant Amber Laura Heard is an individual and a resident of the State of

California. Ms, Heard is an actress and Mr. Depp's former wife. Ms. Heard authored and

;±!!±:d the &fsgsig-y op-ed in the Washington Post that falsely implied that Mr. Depp

abused her during their marriage.

10. This Court has specific personal jurisdiction over Defendant under Virginia's

long-arm statute Va. Code § 8.01-328.1, as wel as under the Due Process Clause of the U.S.

Con:"eþñ, because, among other things, the causes of action in this Complaint arise from

Defendant transacting beehess in this C:±: h and causing tortious injury by an act or

omission in this C‡=:: eel±. Moreover, exercising jurisdictica would not offend traditional

notions of fair play and substantial justice because Def±htt could have - indeed should have

- reasonably foreseen being haled into a Virginia court to account for her false and defamatory

op-ed which was publishe± in ame=g.·ger that is printed in Springfield, Virginia; in an online

edition of the newspaper that is created on a digital platform in Virginia and routed through

servers in Virginia; in a new.;paper that has wide circulation in Virginia and even publishes a

Virginia local edition in which the false and defamatory op-ed appeared; and in a newspaper that

maiñt±; two physical offices in Virginia, Further, Defcñdañt peb!ishe the false and

defamatory op-ed to promote her new movie which was in Virginia theatres for viewing by

Virginia audiences±

4
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11. Venue is proper in this circuit under Va. Code § 8.01-262 because the causes of

action asserted herein arose in this Circuit.

Ms. Heard Wrote An Öp F n Post That Intplies That She Was A Victim

ftDunistkAhn Hands Of Mr. Depp

12. Mr. Depp has appeared in more than 50 films over the last three decades. He has

worldwide name recognition and has played a diverse array of iconic roles, inc!üý!ñg Edward

Scissorhands, Willy Wonka, Captain Jack Sparrow, The Mad Hatter, Grindc!Wald, John

Dellinger, and Whitey Bulger. His movies have grossed over $10 billion delars in the United

States and around the world. He has won the People's Choice Award 14 times.

13. Mr. Depp married Ms, Heard on February 1, 2015. The two met when Ms..Heard

was cast in Mr. Depp's filmThe Rum Diary.

14. The marriage lasted only 15 months.

15. Unbekñcwast to Mr. Depp, no later than one month after his marriage to Ms.

Heard, she was spending time in a new relsticñship with Tesla and Space-X founder, Elon Musk.

Only one calendar month after Mr. Depp and Ms. Heard were married-while Mr. Depp was out

of the country filming in March 2015-Eastern Columbia Building personnel testified that Ms.

Heard mceived Musk "late at
night"

at Mr. Depp's penthcur.e. Specifically, Ms. Heard asked

staff at the Eastern Columbie Dailding to give her "friend
Elon" access to the building's parking

garage and the pcathouse elevator "late at night," and they testified that they did so. Bailding

staff would then see Ms. Heard's "friend Elon"
leaving the X"f-g the next morning. Musk's

first appearance in Mr. Depp's pentheuse occurred shortly after Ms. Heard threw a vodka bottle

at Mr. Depp in Austelie, when she learned that Mr. Depp wanted the couple to enter into a post-

5
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nuptial agreemer.t candarning assets in their marriage. .Ms. Heard's violcatly aimed projetile

virtually severed Mr. Depp's middle fmger on his right hand and shattered the bones.

16. Mr. Depp's marriage to Ms. Heard came to an end in May 2016. After Mr. Depp

indicated to Ms. Heard that he wanted to leave the marriage, Ms, IIcard lured Mr. Depp to his

peñ‡hcase to pick up his personal items. Unaware that members of Mr. Depp's security team

(including an 18-year veteran of the Los Angeles County Sherriff's Departmcat) were mere feet

away, Ms. Heard falsely began yelling astop hitting me
Johnny.t' The interaction qulminsted

with Ms. Heard making false allegations that Mr. Depp struck her with a cell phone, hit her, and

destroyed the penthcase. There were m;!tip!(eye .itnc‡:cs to this hoax. Ms. HÀard's friend

then called the police, who arrived pmmpt!y. Üpon their arrival, Ms, Heard refused to coopeate

with police or make any claims that she had been injured or assaulted, and two dciñ©stic abuse

trained police officers testified that.after close inspection of Ms. Heard and the pederses, they

obscrycd no injury to Ms. Heard or damage to the pentheuses. But then, six days later, Ms.

Heard pese.ted herself to the world with a battered face as she publicly and falsely accused Mr.

Depp of demestie violence and obtained a restraining order against him, based on false testimeny

that she and her friends provided.

17. Now there are newly obtained surveil!ance camera videos, depesitiêns, and other

evidence that ecñcksively disprove Ms. Heard's false allegaticñs. Although much of this

exculpatory evidence was colleet-1 by certain members Mr. Depp's then-legal team in 2016, it

only recently came into Mr. Depp's possessica, as it had been hidden from him for a period of

years.

18. Ms. Heard later withdrew her false dome:::ie violence allegations and dismissed

the restraining order. She and Mr. Depp finalized their divorce in January 2017

6
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19. Despite dismissing the restraining order and withdrawing the domestic abuse

allegations, Ms. Heard (and her surrogat;a) have céntleesey and repoatedly referred to her in

publie±tiens, public servico -rs::ements, social media postings, speeches, and interviewS as a

victim of de±e=*ic violence, and a "surviver," always with the clear implicatica that Mr. Depp

was her supposed abusers

20. Most recently, in December 2018, Ms. Heard psh!ished an op-ed in the

Washington Post that falsely implied that Ms. Heard was a victim of de ±stic violence at the

hands of Mr. Depp. The op-ed was first p±!!:hod on the Fusidq:cw Post's website on

December 18, 2018 with the title, "Amber Heard• I spoke up against sexual violence - and

faced our culture's wrath. This has to change." The op-ed appeared again on Dgéëmber 19,

2018 in the Washin;!:n Post's hazddopy edition under the title, "A Transformative M-t For.

Women." Except for their titles, the online and hard copy versions of the op-ed were

sühstantively identleal and are referred to collectively herein as the "Sexual Violence" op-ed.

21. The "Sexual Violence" op-ed's central thesis was that Ms. Heard was a victim of

domestic violence and faced personal and pmfeseènal reperessións because she "spoke
up"

against "sexual violence"
by "a powerful man."

22. Although Mr. Depp was never idenflfed by name in the "Sexual Violence"
op-ed,

Ms. Heard makes clear, based on the fr:2::!:ñs of the false a cusations that she made against

Mr. Depp in court filings and subsequently reiterated in the press for years, that she was talking

about Mr. Depp and the domestic abuse allegations that she made against him in May 2016. Ms.

Heard wrote:

"Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and faced our culture's wrath.

That has to change."

7
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• "Then two years ago [the precise time frame of her allegations against and divorce
from Mr. Depp], I became a public figure scp:::::!:g domestic abuse, and I felt the
full force of our culture's wrath for women who speak out."

• "I had the rare vantago point of seeing, in real time how insti+»tions protect men
accused of abuse."

• "I write this as a woman who had to change my phone nymbefwdekly because I was

getting death threats. For months, I rarely left rny apartment, and whçn I did, I was
pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on ñtotorcycles and in cars.
Tabloid outlets that posted picturca of nte span them 10 a negative light. I ibit as
though I was on trial in the court of public opinfort - and my INb and !!ve!jhoód
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my

control."

23, As these statements reflect, the whole op-ed proceeds from the notion-presented

as an unassailable truth£that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic viöi©ñùc at the hands of Mr.

Depp. She was not. Ms. Heard is not a victim of d¼mestle violëndeg and Mr. Depp is not a

pe*pë*rater of domestic violence. And the centerpiece of Ms. Heard's :‡‡c:t!:2-seeking hoax-

her claim that Mr. Depp savagely injured her face by throw¼g her own iPhone at her from point

blank range as hard as he could and then continued to beat her face with other "appendages of his
I

body" on the evening of May 21, 2016, which caused her to have the.battered face that she first

presented to the court and the world on May 27, 2016-was a poorlÿ executed lie that

nevertheless has endured for nearly three years. The statcmcats in her "Sexual Violence" op-ed

that imply otherwise are false and defamatory.

Ms. Heard Was Not A Victim Of Domestic Violence: She Was A Perpetrator

24. Long before Ms. Heard became a self-described "public figure representing

demeetic abuse" based on her false domestic violence allegaticña against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard

was in an abusive relationship. But Ms. Heard was not the victim in that rel;‡!:::hip. She was

the abuser.
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25. On Septcmbct 14, 2009, police officers at the Seattle-Tacoma Intas=ªeñ±!

Airport witnessed Ms. Heard physi ly assault her then-d-ayic partner, Tasya van Ree. Ms.

Heard grabbed Ms. van Ree by the arm, hit Ms. van Ree in the arm, and yanked Ms. van Ree's

necklace off her neck. Ms. Heard was arrested. She was booked for misdemeanor dmestic

violence, a mug shot was taken of her, and she spent the night in jail, The following day, the

Seattle-based prösec•áter declined to press charges against Ms. Heard, but only because both she

and her dome ic abuse victim were C !ihala residents who were merely passing tlwoùgh

Washington state.

26. Since casting herself as a ±cati: abuse victim, Ms. Heard has att±±;&d to

blame disogyny and épS for her domestic violence arrest-elaiming that she was

arrested "on a treped up
charge" because she was in a same-sex relationship. In truth, the

police officer who arrested Ms. Heard for d~"(sÈ6 violence was both a woman arul a lesbian

activist, who publicly said so after she was patucly disparaged by Ms. Heard.

27. Ms. Heard's violent domestic abuse did not end when her relfr;±l; with Ms.

van Ree ended. Ms. Heard c:=r!":3 p 3 acts of domesne violence against Mr. Depp

during their marriage. Ms. Heard's physical abuse of Mr. Depp is deeumented by eycwitñêss

accounts, photographs, and even Ms. Heard's own
a-' ' ' a under oath.

28. In one particularly grüêsede episode that occurred only one month into their

marriage, Ms. Heard shattered the bones in the tip of Mr. Depp's right middle finger, almost

comp!ctoly cutting it off. Ms. Heard threw a glass vodka bottle at Mr. Dep,wne of many

projectiles that she I-w.ched at him in this and other instances. The bottle shattered as it came

into contact with Mr. Depp's hand, and the broken glass and impact severed and shattered Mr.
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Depp's finger. Mr. pepp's finger had to be suspeauÿ reattached. Ms. Heard then di::-÷-±mi

false accounts of this incident, casting Mr, Depp as the paptator of his own injury,

29. Ms. Heard's domestic abuse of Mr. Depp ocatinued unabated t!roughout their 15-

month marriage. Ms. Heard threw dangerous objects at Mr. Depp, and also kicked and punched

him with regularity.

30. Shockingly, Ms. Heard even has used oñe of her attacks on Mr. Depp to push her

false narrativ6 that she is a domestic abuse victim. Li her false affkiâvit to obtain a rhaising

order against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard recounted a domest's violence incident that occurred between

her mid Mr.I Depp oxi April 21, 2016 and reversed the roles, claiming that she was the victim

when in truth she was the perpetrator. Ms. Heard falsely claimed that Mr. Depp physically

stiscied her, threw glasses at her, and broke..a champagnc bottle in their pentheuse after her

thirtieth binhday celebration on April 21, 2016. In truth, Ms. Heard-angry with Mr. Depp

because he was late to her birthday celebration due to a business meeting - püñched Mr. Depp

twice in the face as he lay in bed reading, forcing him to flee their peñthause to avoid further

derñestic violence at the hands of Ms. Heard. Mr. Depp's security detail member, Sean Bett (an

18-year veteran of the Los Angeles County
Sherriff'

s Department) picked up Mr. Depp

immediately after Ms. Heard assaulted him and witnessed firsthand the aftermath and damage to

Mr. Depp's face. On other occasicas-atter Ms. EIeard vicicñtly attacked Mr. Depp in

December 2015-Mr. Bett insisted on taking photographs to dccurseat the damage to Mr.

Depp's face inflicted by Ms. Heard.

31. Thus, contrary to the false and defametery implicâtics in her "Sexual Violence"

op-ed, Ms. Heard was never a victim of domestic violcñce at the hands of Mr. Depp. Ms. Heard

herself is a domestic abuser, who coinsitted maltipk acts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp
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during their marriage, in addition to the domestic abuse that she perpetrated against her for r

partner.

Ms. Heard¶peneeN¼AMe psa ggilist Mr. Depp AtÚãÈre;And Have Been
RWfpth Ins$ely It ytral Third#éty WtMWes, and

7 Surveillance Videos

32. Ms. Heard did not "
speak] up against sexual violence" as she claimed in her op-

ed. She made false allegatiañs of domestic abuse against Mr. Depp to execute her hoaxü

33. The centerpiece of Ms. Heard's false abuse allegations is an incident that she

elal±ed took place around 7:15 pm on"Saturday, May 21, 2016 at Mr. Depp's penthouse in the

Eastern C¾:di Building in dc . ven Los Angeles. After Ms. Heard lured'Mr. Depp to pick

up persorá1 items from his own penthouse, Ms. Heard, sitting on the sofa with her friend, 1hquel

Peñüiragicñ, and talking on the phone with her friend, iO Tillett Wright, claimed that Mr. Depp

"grabbed the cell phone, wound up his arm like a baseball pitcher and threw the cell phone at me

striking my cheek and eye with great
force." Ms. Heard also claimed that Mr. Depp further

battered her face with some "appendage of his body" and then used a magnum-sized bottle of

wine to destroy the pentheuse, spilling wine, broken glass, and other items around the pentheuse.

"Penthouse 3 was destroyed"
by Mr. Depp's bottle sv;inging, claimed Ms. Heard in her sworn

tetirecñy. Her two friends testified secordingly. Ms. Heard used these allegations to obtain a

temporary restraining order against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016, appearing in court six days after

the alleged incident with the fu·st appearance of a battered face, sets;ikeñdirg that a litany of

people witne=ed her thróüghcut the week with no injury and 5:!!£:g surveillance videos

similarly showed her uninjured.

34. Mr. Depp, it is worth noting, left Los Angeles for many weeks almost

[ immediately after the alleged incident. And it is also worth noting that i:!!!!:g personnel
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testified under oath that they again feci!itated Elon Musk's nighttimc visits to Mr. Depp's.

pêñeouse to visit Ms, Heard, key fothing him in and out of the building proximate to the time

Ms. Heatl presented her be*+=± face to the public and the nourt on May 27, 2016.

35. Mr. Depp has consistently and unequivöcally denied Ms. Heard' s derrtle abuse

allegations. They also have been refuted wheigil¼cly by mn!tip!:, neutral ±ird psty witnesses.

36, Ms. Heard's friend and neighbor, Isaac Barach, gave a declaration that he

repeatedly interacted with Ms. Neard, at close range, without =.khp; and utterly tuuumied and

uninjured in the days between May 22 and May 27 2016, He further stated in his dec!hspen

that on June 3, aAer conf=ñ ing Ms. Heard about hoy upset he was at her false abuse

alleghtions; "Amber then told me that she did not want :=y±ing fröm Johnny and that it was the

lawyers who were doing all of this."

37. Police went to Mr. Depp's pentheuse on May 21, 2016, !±±edi=te!y aAer the

dsnt was alleged to have occurred. They were dispatched after Ms. Heard's friend, Mr.

Wright, called 911 to report what the police dhpatch log describes as a "verbal argument only"

between a hü‡sñd and wife. Two officers, who are highly-trained in düñisue violence, arrived

at the pea+hense shortly after Ms. Heard later claimed that Mr; Depp struck her in the face with a

cell phone, further hit her face, and then "destroyed" his own pentheuse by swinging a m;ë-.us-

sized bottle of wine into other objects k;;‡:ñt that penthouse. Officer Melissa Saenz is a

veteran Los Angeles Police officer who is charged with training other police officers and

personally has reepended to "over a hundred" dgmestic violence calls. Officer Tyler Hadden is a

junior police officer, but focused on domestic violence at the police academy and received

extensive training in how to detect that particular crime.
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38. Both Officer Saenz and Officer Hadden testified under oath that they closely

observed Ms. Heard's face in good light on May 21, 2016 and saw no signs of any injury. In the

police officers' face-to-face interactions witlr Ms. Heard imm:ditely after she supposedly was

struck in the face with a cell phone and then further beaten in the face by Mr. Depp, the police

officers saw no red marks, no bruising, and no swelling anywhere on Ms. Heard's face. Both

Officer Saenz and Officer Hadden also +a•*mad under oath that, when they went roam-to-rcom

in the p±ñt'·:ces to investigate, they saw no broken glass,nospilled wine, and no vandalih or

property damage of any kind. This is in contrast to Ms. Heard's later claim that Mr. Depp

"destroyed" p‡fic‡ac 3 and caused serious, visible injuries to her face. R also directly

èentradicts Ms. Heard's friend's :=±-±y regardiñg what Ms. Heard's face looked like at that

time: "Just the whole side of her face was like swolled up (sic) and red and puffy . . . and

progressively getting
worse."

39. There was no probable cause to believe that a crime had been ccnsi"ed,

according to Officer Saenz's testimony, because Ms. Heard had no injuries and claimed to have

no injuries, and there was no property damage in the pcathouse or signs of any altcrcation.

40. Më!tips people who work professicñally in the Eastern Columble Building where

the p-±theüse is located, and who
do'

not know Mr. Depp personally, also have 2.r.tigucaly

debunked Ms, Heard's claim that her face was injured on May 21, 2016 and that she had any

sign of injury in the six days before May 27, 2016. Three people, the tril±:g's conciarge, head

of front desk and head of security, pef=mily testified under oath about their facc-to-face

interactions with Ms. Heard between May 22, 2016 (the day after Ms. Heard claims that Mr.

Depp hit her and struck her in the eye and on the cheek with a cell phone) and May 27, 2016 (the

day Ms. Heard appeared in public and went to court to get a restraining order against Mr. Depp
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with what appcared to be a battered face). Every one of those three people testified under oath

that they saw Ms. Heard up close in the days after the supposed attack and her face was not

injured before the day she obin!ned the restraining order against Mr. Depp.

41. Cornelius Harrell is a concierge at the Eastern Columbia Building and was

working at the front desk at 1 pm on the ahranan of Sunday, May 22, 2016. Mr. Harrell saw

Ms. Heard face-to-face that ene-n^^n-less than 24 hours after she claims that she was struck in

the face by a cell phone thrown by Mr. Depp and hit in the face by Mr. Depp.

42. In an interaction that was also captured by the Eastern Columbia "i:ilding's

surveillance cameras and saved, Ms. Heard approached Mr. Harrell to pick up a package that had

been delivered to her. Ms. Heard accompanied Mr. Harrell to the package room to identify

which packaga she wanted because more than one had been delivered to her. As they were

looking through her packages, Mr. Harrell and Ms. Heard were inside the package room

together. The package room at the Eastern Columbia Building is "no bigger than a walk-in

closet," so Mr. Harrell had an eppo_±±y to observe Ms. Heard's face up close, the day after she

claimed she was battered by Mr. Depp in the face.

43. Mr. Harrell testified under oath that, on May 22, 2016, Ms. Heard did not have

any bruises, cuts, scratches, or swelliiig on her face and that "nothing appeared out of the

ordinary about Ms. Heard's face on May 22,
2016." In fact, Mr. Harrell testified that he was

struck by how "bestiff," "radiant," and "refreshed" Ms. Heard looked, noting that, if she was

wearing any makeup at all, it was
"minimal." Mr. Harrell inicqüivecally testified that vehen he

was interacting one-on-one in close quarters with Ms. Heard on May 22, 2016 for about 8

rninutes that he did not see any evidencc to suggest that she had been the victim of domestic

violence the day before. Mr. Harrell does not know Mr. Depp personally.
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44. Alejandro Remere also works at the Eastern Columbia Building, =:=ing the

front desk and monit:-ing the security cameras from 4;00 pm to 1:00 am Monday-Friday. Mr.

Romero had "hundreds" of in person interactioris with Ms. Heard when she resided in the

penthouse, in additicñ to observing her innumerable times on surveillance footage captured by

the Eastern Co!ñn±ia Building's seâurity cameras. Mr. Remerp testined under oath about two

specific face-to-face in = that he had with Ms. Heard in the days after she claimed that

Mr. Depp hit her in the face and struck her cheek and eye with a cell phone that he threw.

45. Mr. R~nere testified that on the "Monday or Tuesday"
evening "after the police

were called"-May 23 or 24, 2016-he was appzesched at the front desk by Ms. Heard and her

friend, Ms. Peredngton, who also resided in the penth:: e. Ms. Heard and Ms. Pe=ington

asked Mr. Remerb to accompany them to the pe thouse because they were afraid that ===a

had tried to get inside the scnt:nac. Mr. Romero discøüñted this enncern because he had been

monitoring security footage and saw no one trying to access the pcathon::e. Nevertheless, Mr.

Romero agreed to accompany Ms. Heard and Ms. Penrdñgtcñ to the penthou:c and confirm that

it was secure. He left the front.desk with Ms. Heard and Ms. Pc-ning:ca, rode up to the 13th

floor with them, and went inside the penthouse with them. Throughest this inteeetion, Mr.

Romero testified under oath that he had "a full shot" of Ms. Heard's face and "a good
visual" of

Ms. Heard's face and saw no bruises, cuts, swelling, or marks of any kind.

46. Mr. Romero interacted with Ms. Heard again on the evening of May 25, 2016

when she came to the front desk to retrieve a key to the penthouse that she had left at the front

desk, Again, in this face-to-face interaction, Mr. Romere testified that he saw no bruises, cuts,

swelling, or marks of any kind on Ms. Heard's face.
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!
47. Based on his in-person httsetions with Ms. Heard, Mr. Romero, who does not

know.Mr. Depp personally, testified under oath that he "couldn't believe" Ms. Heard's domestic

abuse allegations against Mr. Depp because:

It was like - it was like I said, we watched the news and we eaw the plotures. And I saw
th and the¾ y1 saw her, I was like, come on, really? I couldn't belleve it,
It Was I saw her (W) ü½ñ. . . . . The pictures I saw on the news, she got like a big
mark on her -- on her eyes and her cheek. And when I saw her in perso4 I didn't sec
anything.

48. Trinity Esparza, the daytimc concierge at the Eastern Cobimbia Buildin.g who

works at the front desk from 8:00 am to 4:00 pm Müñday-Friday, echoed Mr. Remere's disbelief

at Ms. Heard's account, Ms. Esparza, who does not know Mr. Depp ppiscñally, testified under

oath that she thought that Ms. Heard's alicgation that she had been assaulted by Mr. Depp was

"false" becâüsc !1 saw her several times [in the days after the a!Ieged attack] and I didn't see that

[mark] on her face "

49. Ms. Esparza had multiple facc-to-face interactions with Ms. Heard in the days

after Ms. Heard claimed that Mr. Depp hit her and struck her in the eye and cheek with a cell

phone. Ms. Esparza saw Ms. Heard in-person on Menday, May 23, 2016; Tuesday, May 24,

2016; Wednesday, May 25, 2016; and Friday, May 27, 2016. Ms. Esparza testified under oath

that, when she saw Ms. Heard on the Monday, Tuesday, and Wedñcaday after the alleged attack,

Ms. Heard was not wearing makeup and that Ms. Heard had no facial injuries. There were no

bruises or cuts on Ms. Heard's face, a-Hag to Ms. Esparza's testimony. Ms. Esparza testified

under oath that she saw no indication that Ms. Heard had been hit or struck.

50. Then, on Friday, May 27, 2016, Ms. Espârza testified under oath that Ms. Heard

suddesty ".had a red cut underneath her right eye and red marks by her eye " Then Ms. Esparza

learned from media reports that Ms. Heard had obtained a domestic violence restraining order
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against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016. Because Ms. Esparzâ had seen Ms. Heard so many times

that week without any marks on her face, Ms. Esparza thought "the time didn't add up and so I

was qücatioñing . . . the mark on her face and the allegations that were made."

51. Ms. Esparza was so troubled by the sudden appe=±mee of "a mark" on Ms.

Heard's face onthe very day that Ms. Heard obeiñed a restraining order against Mr. Depp-but

six days after the alleged incident-that Ms. Esparza went back and looked at security video

footage and talked to others who worked in the Eastern CRz± f Building to see if the "mark"

might have been on Ms. Heard's face earlier. It wasn't.

52. Mr. Romero and Mr. Harrell cp25 d to Ms. Esparza that Ms. Heard did not

have any.injuries on her face when they interacted with her.

53. Ms. Esparza also did not see the "mark" on Ms. Heard's face when she went back

and reviewed sur=ilisse videos from the days after Ms. Heard claims that Mr. Depp hit her and

struck her in the face with a cell phone that he tléew.

54. But Ms. Esparza did see samething else on the surveillance video. On a video

from the evening of May 24, 2016, three nights after Ms. Heard alleged that she was attacked by

Mr. Depp, Ms. Esparza saw Ms. Heard, her sister, Whitney Heard, and Ms. Heard's friend and

corroborating witness, Ms. Penning'on, on the ina=ine level of the Eastern C±=bin

Building. In the us venhuwe video, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that she saw Whitney.

Heard pretend to punch her sister in the face. Then Ms. Heard, Ms. Penningtañ, and Whitney

Heard all laughed. Ms. Esparza testiñéd that she thought how Ms, Heard, Ms. Pcññington, and

Whitney Heard were acting on the surveillance video was
"wrong," and it only made her

question more how Ms. Heard ended up with a "mark" on her face three days later, on Friday,

May 27. Ms. Esparza knew that Mr. Depp had left Los Angeles for work on the day of the
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alleged incident "and he did not return and so I was quaticñing how those marks got on her face

on Friday."
Ultiiñàtely, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that she was forced to cenelude that

"whatever happened to [Ms. Heard's] face did not happen on Saturday [May 21]", as Ms. Heard

had alleged.

55. Ms. Esparza is not the only professional employee of the Eastern Columbia

Building to witness the ''fake punch" video. manda Patterson, the General Manager of the

Eastern Columbia Buikiing, provided a declaration about it:

Onie of the surveillance videos, taken the evening of Tuesday, May 24, showed Amber

Heardi her sister Whitney Heard, and her filend Rdquel Runtiingo-. entering the
building's mezzanine. Trhiity Esparza showed me a video at the front desk with a pretend

punch to the face from one of Miss Heard's two e-m;-ipra, and the three of them
!cughed hard. They then enter the p.ntheüse elevator, where Ms. Heard's face was

clearly visible, there were similarly no bruises, cuts, redness, swelling visible on Ms.
Heard's fade.

56. Later, in the media firestorm ceneetning Ms. Heard's domestic abuse allegations

against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard learned that there were media reports stating that people. who

worked at the front desk of the Eastern Columbia Building had seen Ms. Heard without any

marks on her face, as indeed was their testimony. Mr. Patterson, the General Manager of the

Eastern Columbia Building, summarized the testimony of building staff in his own declaration:

Ms. Heard was repeatedly observed in the Eastern Colümbia Building in the multiple
days f:!!cslñg the alleged assault without bruises, cuts, redness, swelling or any other

injuries to her face. These observationsye by people working at thstrõnt desk at

the Eastern Colmnbia Building who iñt Ms. Heard in person ei14 also saw

images of her on the building surveillance cameras.

57. Approximately a week after she made her domestle abuse allegations against Mr.

Depp, Ms. Heard appröached Ms. Esparza and Mr. Patterson, and asked the two of them to give

a statement to Ms. Heard's
"friend" at People Magazine. Ms. Heard wanted Ms. Esparza and

Mr. Pattersoñ "to help retract the statement that was given to the press stating that the front desk
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had released this infemation [about seeing Ms. Heard with no injuries to her face] and [Ms.

Heard] asked
if'

we would clarify it and let them know that we, in fact, would never release that

information on any maident " Mr. Patterson and Ms. Esparza refused to give the •+-*a-af and

directed Ms. Heard to the Eastern Colast,14 Building's lawyer.

58. Ms. Esparza testified that she was "not comfortable" with "the s+-tement that [Ms.

Heard] was propeèing that [the building] make to People Magazine, that the building would not

have said they saw [Ms. Heard] without marks on her face" "because that would have been a lie"

as "the front desk did, in fact, see [Ms. Heard) prior to Friday [May 27, 2016] without marks on

her face

59. The people working at the front desk of the Eastern C‡!ts91 Building did not

see any injuries to Ms. Heard's face because there were no injuries to Ms. Heard's face. Ms.

Heard's alië¼ãticñã that Mr. Depp's battered her was a poorly executed hoax.

60. The police officers, who reepended to the penthouse on May 21, 2016

immediately after the alleged attack, saw no signs that Ms. Heard had been hit or struck by a cell

phone or that a m::gnum-sized bottle of wine had
"destroyed" the penthouse because those

things never happcñct. There was no probable cause to believe a crime had been dçssitted

because no crime had been comm!!!:d against Ms. Heard by Mr. Depp.

61. Ms. Heard's domestic violonuo allegations against Mr. Depp were false, as is her

portrayal of herself in her "Sexual
Violence" op-ed as a domestic violence victim and her

portrayal of Mr. Depp as a domestic violence perpetratar and "monster."

Ms. Heard Acted WJ#1 Aethál-Malice When She Implit fn?Her uâI ViMents" Op-Ed

That She W A Viktim Of Damastic Abuse MThe Hattes Q Depp
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62. Ms. Heard acted with actual malice when she p±E±ed her false and defamatory

"Sexùal Violence" op-ed and implied that she was a victim of domestic abuse at the hands of Mr.

Depp.

63. Ms. Heard knew that she was not the domcstic abuse victim, but the hn-estic

[ abuser.

64. Ms. Heard knew that her domestic abuse allegations against Mr. Depp were false

and that she leveled them and enlisted her friends to act as surrogates for her lies, as part of an

elaborate hoax to generate positive publicity for herself.

65. Ms. Heard also knew that her e!áberate hoax worked: as a result of her false

allegations against Mr. Depp, Ms, Heard became a darling of the #MeToo movement, was the

first actress named a Human Rights Champicñ of the United Nations Human Rights Office, was

appoiñtcd ambassador on women's rights at the American Civil Liberties Union, and was hired

by L'Oréal Paris as its global spokesperson.

66. Because of the past success that her false domestic abuse al e e
' s against Mr.

Depp had brought her, Ms. Heard revived the false a"pi;:tism to promote her new movie.

67. M;::==, Ms. Heard's first leading role in a big-budget studio film, piomiered in

theatres across the United States (and in Virginia) on December 21, 2019. The movie ended up

making over $1 billion at the box office globally.

68. Tellingly, just days before the premiero, Heard published her "Sexual Violence"

op-ed with its false implicatica that she was a domestic abuse victim at the hands of Mr. Depp on

December 18, 2019 in the Washiñg:0n Post's online edition and on December 19, 2019 in the

Washiñgtüñ Post's hardcapy edition. The op-ed in the Washi;:g:c;z Post's online edition was

accompased by a picture of Ms. Heard on the red carpet at Agsc==;'s Los Angeles premiere.
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Mr. Depp's Reputation And Career Suffer As A Result Of Ms. Heard's
False And Defamatory Op-Ed

69. As a result of Ms, Heard's false domestic abuse allegatinna Mr. Depp's

reputation and career sustaiñêd immense damage.

70. Ms. Heard, an actress herself, is well aware of the negative effect that false

domestic abuse allegations have on Mr. Depp's career.

71. Mr. Depp lost roles in movies because of the false allegations that Ms. Heard

made against him. When Mr. Depp was cast in films there were public outcries for the.

filmmakers to recast his roles.

72, Mr. Depp endured the public scorn caused by Ms. Heard's false damstic abuse

allegations for more than two years. But he was weatheririg the storm and had a successfûl film

release in November 2019. in fact, that movie was still playbig on screens across Virginia when

Ms. Heard revived the false dem:::22 abuse allegations by publishing her "Sexual Violence" op-

ed in the Washington Post.

73. The reaction to Ms. Heard's fal,se and dcfamatory op-ed was swift and severe.

Just two days after the op-ed appeared in the Washington Post's online edition, Disney publicly

aiüióüiiced that Mr. Depp would no longer be a part of the Pirates of the Caribbcüñ franchise.

Mr. Depp's turn as Captain Jack Sparrow in the Pirates of the Caribbcan films is one of Mr.

Depp's most iconic roles, and generated billions of dollars for Disriey. Nevertheless, he was

denied an app-:-nüñity to reprise that role i==:dist:!y on the heels of Ms. Heard's false and

defamatory op-ed.

COUNT ONE-DEFAMATION FOR STATEMENTS IN MS. HEARD'S DECEMBER

18, 2018 OP-ED IN THE ONLINE EDITION OF THE WASHINGTONPOST
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74 Plaintiff repeats and ic-ancges each of the forcgchig paragraphs as if set forth

fully herein.

75. Ms. Heard published the "Sexual Violence" op-ed on the Decembar 18, 2018.

The article was ;±E±:d to a worldwide audience on the F:hing!en Post's website. A true

and correct copy of the online edition of the "Sexual Violence" op-ed is attached hereto and

incorporated by refeence as Exhibit A.

7& The "Sexual Violence" op-ed centeined the
fu"

false and defamatory

staternents concerning Mr. Deppi

• "Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and faced our culture's wrath.
That has to change."

• 'ÝEoptWeyestango jegante4 liÇflpf½$ñídng de=:étiõ abuse, and I felt
t151%l116 of$Xfronitu#¼yrgi6Èpwgni 6 epéákout."

"I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how instit:ions protect men
accused of abuse."

"I write this as a woman who had to change my phone number weekly because1 was

getting death threats. For months, 1 rarely lelt my apartment ahd when 1 did, I was
pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on motorcycles and in ears.
Tabloid outlets that posted pictues of met spun them in a n6gative light. 1 felt as

though I was on trial in the court of public epinice - and my life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my

control."

77, These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard's former

husbsd and she publicly (and falsely) accused him of d;:nestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,

Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these stateisents, and those who know Mr. Depp or

who read the "Sexual Violence" op-ed understeed.these state:nents to be about Mr. Depp.

78. These stetc-sents, which imply that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:
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a. Mr. Depp did not commit "domestic abuse" or "sexual vicicacc" against Ms.

Heard. Ms. Heard's allegatiõñ that Mr. Depp violently attacked her on May 21,

2016 has been refuted conclusively by police, neutral third-party witnesses, and

87 newly obtained surveillance camera videos.

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestio violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.

Heard was arrested for domestic violence against her former deseede partner in

2009. Ms. Heard also comm®tted m2 p': acts of domestic violence against Mr.

Depp, some of which she has confessed to under oath.

79. The substantial danger of injury to Mr. Depp's rep±eon froni Ms. Heard's false

st±mqnts is readily apparent. Such statements would tend to so harm the repattEéá of another

as to lower him in the esti±t!en of the com-.:nity or to deter third persons from associating or

dealing with him.

80. By "fdrg these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp's

reputation.

81. At the time of publication, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.

82. Ms. Heard's false statements are defamatory per se because they impute to Mr.

Depp the commissics of a crime iñvelving moral =-;È:d: for which Mr. Depp, if the charge

was true, could be indicted and punished. Moreover, Ms. Heard's false statement• pmjudice Mr.

Depp in his p::f:::bn as a film actor. Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to picsumcd damages.

83. As a direct and preylmete result of these false gatements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp

has suffered damages, iñcludiñ i, inter alia, injury to his repu'Elen, harm to his ability to carry

on his profession, embressment, kmiliation, and emoden-2 distress, in an amount to be

determined at trial.
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84. Ms. Heard's actions were malicious, willful, and wanton, and evidence a

conscious disagard for Mr. Depp's rights. Acccrdiüg'y, püüitive damages are apprcpriate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfh!!y rcqucats that the Court enter an award in Plaintiff's

favor and against Defendant, as follows:

(1) awarding Mr. Depp compekatory damages of not less than $ 50,090,000, or in

such addifice! amount to be proven at trial;

(2) at:±dit.;; MreDepp punitive damages to the mavimu5 extent pt:mi" d by the

laws of this Commonwealth, but not less than $ 350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all of his expesses and costs, ipludiüg
attorneys'

fees; and

(4) granting such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

COUNT TW94HBFA ATION FOR STATEMENTS IN MS. HEARD'S'DECEMBER

19dlÑ‡NÈDE THE PRINT EDITION OF THE WA$HIÑGTOMPOST

85. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each of the foregcing paragraphs as if set forth

fully herein.

86, Ms. Heard pd!!±ej the "Sexual Violence" op-ed in the Decemhar 19, 2018

hardeepy edition of the W:h! !cn Post, which the Wching::;; Post distributes to readers in

Virginia, across the nation, and around the world, A true and correct copy of the hardeepy

edition of the "Sexual Violence" op-ed is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as

Exhibit B,

87. The "Sexual Violence" op-ed contained the following false and defamatory

statements concerning Mr. Depp:

* "Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and faced our culture's wrath.
That has to change."
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A '"Therr two years ago, I became a public figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt
the full force of our culture's wrath for women who speak out."

• "I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how !:dt:‡i::: protect men
accused of abuse."

"I write this as a woman who had to change my phone number weekly because I was

getting death threats. For months, I rarely left my apartment, añd when I did, I was
pursued by camerg droges arid photographers on foot, on motorcycles and In cars.
Talgoid outlets that posted pictures of me spun them in a hegative light. I felt as
though I was on trial in the court of public opini4n - and my'life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my

control."

88. These statements are of and cenccming Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard's former

husband and she publicly (and falsely) accused him of domestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,

Ms. Heard intanded to refer to Mr. Depp in these statemeiits, and those who know Mr. Depp or

who read the "Sexual Violence" o ed understood these statem:·± to be about Mr. Depp.

89. These stements, which imply that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:

a. Mr. Depp did not commit "demesue abuse" or "sexual violence" against Ms.

Heard. Ms. Heard's £":;d;: that Mr. Depp violently attacked her on May 21,

2016 has been refuted cóñclusively by police, neutral third-party vgitn;ss;s, and

87 newly obtained surycillance camera videos.

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of deiüéstic violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.

Heard was arrested for domestic violence against her former partner in 2009. Ms.

Heard also committed m±lp!e acts of da-da violence against Mr. Depp.

90. The substantial danger of injury to Mr. Depp's reputation from Ms. Heard's false

statements is readily apparent. Such statem::‡a would tend to so harm the rcpatation of another

as to lower hirn in the estimation of the ccms::!‡ÿ or to deter third persons from =éseei=iing or

dealing with him.
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91. By publishing these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp's

reputation.

92. At the time of publicª±inn, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.

93. Ms. Heard's false stÉtements are defer±t-y per se becäüse they impute to Mr.

Depp the -;:i±sian of a crime invçMag moral 52pitude for which Mr. Depp, if the charge

was true, could be indi¼‡:d and punished Moreover, Ms. Heard's false statements pnjudim Mr.

Depp in his psfessicñ as a film actor. Mr. Depp the-fe-tis entitled to presumed damages.

94, As a direct and proximate result of these fälse statements by Mac Heard, Mr. Depp

has suffered damages, le!"ding, inter alia, injury to his Epst¼tiá, harm to his ability to carry

on his prafession, embarrassment, humilistice, and emotional distress, in can amount to be

determined at trial.

95. Ms. Heard's actions were mâ!idicüs, willful, and wanton, and evidence a

conscious disregard for Mr, Depp's rights. A;cer£ngly, punitive damages are appropriate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff;espee ü"y requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiffs

favor and against Defendant, as follows:

(1) awarding Mr. Depp compensatory damages ofnot less than $ 50,000,000, or in

such additional amount to be proven at trial;

(2) awarding Mr. Depp punitive damages to the maximum extent permitted by the

laws of this Commeswcalth, but not less than $ 350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all of his experses and costs, inciuding
attomeys'

fees; and

(4) granting such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

COUNTTER FOR STATEMENTS IN MS, HEARD'S OP-ED

WI$CH H ED WHEN SHE TWEETED A LINK
TO THE OP-ED ON DECEMBER 19, 2018
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96. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs as if set forth

fully herein.

97. Ms. Heard published the "Sexual Violonce" op··ed in the December 18, 2018

online edition of the Wash!ng!cn Post. The folicwing day, Ms. Heard tweeted a link to the op-

ed. A true and correct copy of Ms. Heard's tweet of the link to the "Sexual Violence" op-ed is

attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit C.

98. The "Sexual Violence" op-ed contained the following false and defamatory

statements concerning Mr. Depp:

• "Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and faced our culture's wrath.

That has to change."

• "Then two years ago, I became a public figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt

the full force of our culture's wrath for women who speak out."

"I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how i=titudons protect men

accused of abuse."

"I write this as a woman who had to change my phone number weekly because I was

getting death threats. For months, I rarely left my apahent, and when I did, I was

pursued by camera drones and photogi'aphers on foot, on metercycles and in cars.

Tabloid outlets that posted pictures of me spun them in a negative light. I felt as

though I was on trial in the court of public apinics - and my life and livelihood

depended on myriad judgments far beyond my
control."

99. These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard's former

husband and she im'clicly (and falsely) accused him of domestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,

Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these statements, and those who know Mr. Depp or

who read the "Sexual
Violence" op-ed understood these statements to be about Mr. Depp.

100. These stats;ncnt, which imply that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:
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a. Mr. Depp did not commit "demestic abuse" or "sexual violence" against Ms.

Heard. Ms. Heard's allegation that Mr. Depp violently attacked her on May 21,

2016 has been refuted conclusively by police, multi;¹s, netitral third-party

witnesses, and 87 newly obtained sur-m."- camera videos,

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.

Heard was e-ested for domestic violence against her former partner in 2009. Ms.

Heard also committed me!!!;!c acts of anme.atic violence against Mr. Depp.

101. The "-d-1 danger of injury to Mr. Depp's reputation from Ms. Heard's false

statements is readily appe=nt. Such statements would tend to so harm the reputation of another

as to lower him in the estimation of the ------"y or to deter third persons from esse sting or

dealirig with him.

102. By -rei±ing these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp's

reputation,

103. At the time of publicâ‡ioñ, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.

104. Ms. Heard's false statements are defeatory per se because they impute to Mr.

Depp the com--dssion of a crime involving moral ::-pit±o for which Mr. Depp, if the charge

was true, could be indicted and pn-ished. Moreover, Ms. Heard's false statements prejüdies Mr.

Depp in his profession as a fdm actor. Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damages.

105. As a direct and proximate result of these false statemor.‡a by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp

has suffered damages, including, inter alia, injury to his reputatics, harm to his ability to carry

on his profession, embarrä3ssêñt, h -'in, and emotional distress, in an amount to be

determined at trial.
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106. Ms. Heard's actions were meleióüs, willful, and wanton, and evidence a

ceascicus disregard for Mr. Depp's rights. Accordingly, punitive damages are appropriate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfelly requosis that the Court enter an award in Fluiniiirs

favor, and against Defendent, as follows:

(1) awarding Mr. Depp compensetory da:nages of not less than $50,000,000, or in

such additional amount to be proven at trial;

(2) e=dihg Mr. Depp punitive damages to the maximum extent permitted by the

laws of this Commêñwca!th, but no less than $350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all expenses and costs, including
attorneys'

fees; and

(4) such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II hereby de:nands a jury trial on all issues so triable.

Dated: March 1, 2019

Bridäny Whiteseli EUes (Wo hac vice app!icet!er. forthcoming)
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP
901 Fifteenth Street, N.W.
Suite 700
Washington, D.C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 601-1602
Facsimile: (202) 296-83 I2
Email: bbiles@steinmitche!!.com
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Paosimile: (202) 296-8312
Email: bbiles@steinmitchell.com

Adam R. Waldman
THE pliffadYØÂLAW FIRM, P.C.
1775 fgmayiyanin Avenue, N.W., Suite 350
Washington, DC 20006

Ben timin 0. Chew (VSB # 29113)
Elliot J. Weingarten ( pro hac vice application ford;coming)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP
601 Thirteenth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 200R5
Telephone: (202) 53ti-1700
Façsimilet (202) 536-1701
Emaildishedf$hroz¼tshMgers

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, H
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3/1/2019 Amber Heard on Twitter: "Today I publishedthis op-ad in the WashingtonPost aboutthe womenwho arechannelingtheir rageaboutviole...

Amber Heard

@realamberheard

Today I published this op-ed in the

Washington Post about the women who

are channeling their rage about violence

and inequality into political strength

despite the price of coming forward.

From college campuses to Congress,

we're balancing the scales.

Opinion | Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and fa...

We have an opening now to bolster and build instit'Ane protective of

women. Let's not ignore it.

washingtonpost.com

1:28 PM - 19 Dec 2018

1,292 Retweets 3,556 Likes

Q 128 Û 1.3K 3.6K

Amber Heard @realamberheard · 19 Dec 2018 v
rm heñõred to announce my role as an At LU embasseder on women's rights.

https://twitter.com/realemberheard/status/1075503279323242496?)ang=en 1/1
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C_ERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 2nd day of February 2021, I caused copies of the

foregoing to be served via email (per written agreement between the Parties) on the following:

Elaine Charlson Bredehoft (VSB No. 23766)
Carla D. Brown (VSB No. 44803)
Adam S. Nadelhaft (VSB No. 91717)
David E. Murphy (VSB No. 90938)
CHARLSON BREDEHOFT COHEN & BROWN,
P.C.

11260 Roger Bacon Dr., Suite 201

Reston, VA 20190

Phone: 703-318-6800

Fax: 703-318-6808

ebredehoft@cbcblaw.com

cbrown@cbcblaw.com

anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com

dmurphy@cbcblaw.com

A. Benjamin Rottenborn (VSB No. 84796)
Joshua R. Treece (VSB No. 79149)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, Virginia 24011

Telephone: (540) 983-7540

brottenborn@woodsrogers.com

jtreece@woodsrogers.com

Counsel for Defendant Amber Laura Heard

Benjamin G. Chew
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brownrudnick
BENJAMIN G. CHEW

directdial: 202.536.1785 CIVIL
INTAKEbchew@brownnednick.com

202f FEB 2 Mli 47

February 2, 2021 N t p

.
FAIRFAX.

VACOUg y

VIA HAND DELIVERY

The Honorable John T. Frey, Clerk

Fairfax County Circuit Court

4110 Chain Bridge Road, Suite 320

Fairfax, Virginia 22030

RE: John C. Depp, H v. Amber Laura Heard

Case No. CL-2019-0002911

Foreign Subpoenas: ACLU Foundation, Ben Wizner, and Anthony Romero

Dear Mr. Frey,

Please find enclosed two copies each of six foreigñ subpoenas of third-party witnesses pursuant

to Virginia Code Section 8.01-412.10 and New York Civil Practice Law and Rules Section

3119. The enclosed subpoenas have been issued in accordance with both Acts and the reciprocal

privileges included therein.

The enclosed subpoenas will be served by private process server. Please file one copy of each

subpoena with the Court's papers in this case and issue one copy of each subpoena in

accordance with the Uniform Interstate Deposition and Discovery Act. Also enclosed is a check

for the Court's fees covering all six subpoenas. Thank you for your assistance.

Regards,

BROWN RUDNICK LLP

Benjamin G. Chew

Enclosures

Brow n Rudnick LLP I brewarednick.com I 601 Thiriêêiliti Street NW, Suite 600, 'A':: aton. DC, 20005 11.202.536.1700
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